
       PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
       REGULAR VOTING MEETING 
        TUESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2013 
       PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 

                                  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY 
COUNCIL HELD ON JANUARY 22, 2013, in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at 
CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona.  
  
  CALL TO ORDER 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall called the meeting to order at 3:00 P.M.  

 
    INTRODUCTIONS  
 
       INVOCATION by Rabbi Billy Berkowitz, Temple B’rith Shalom of Prescott 
 
   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE by Councilman Scamardo  
 
  ROLL CALL:    
 
 Present:       Absent: 
  

Mayor Kuykendall      None   
Councilman Arnold    
Councilman Blair    

 Councilman Carlow    
 Councilman Kuknyo 
 Councilman Lamerson 
 Councilman Scamardo 
 
 PROCLAMATION – “40 Days of Peace”. 
 

No one was in attendance to accept the proclamation.  
 
 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 

 
None 
 

I. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the Prescott City Council Special Meeting of 
January 8, 2013 and Workshop of January 8, 2013. 
 

B. Approval to purchase a robotic camera system for Council Chambers from 
Troxell in the amount of $11,270.57 plus tax. 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 2 
 

COUNCILMAN ARNOLD MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
1.A. - I.B; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.           

 
 II.   REGULAR AGENDA 

 
A. Consideration of a petition by Ralph Hess, Prescott, Arizona, requesting 

adoption of an ordinance prohibiting possession, manufacture, or transfer 
of semiautomatic assault weapons within the City limits of the City of 
Prescott. 

 
City Attorney Paladini said it is his opinion that state legislature has preempted 
the City’s authority to impose such a ban. If adopted, it would likely be challenged 
and the City would not be successful.   
 
Sandra Smith, Prescott resident, said the Second Amendment was put into the 
Constitution to defend us against world governments. She said we should keep it 
and stand by it.  
 
Jim Campbell, Prescott resident, said that he worked as a law enforcement 
officer in Los Angeles where a similar ban was adopted. He said it criminalized 
legal activity by good citizens. Arizona is known as a free state throughout the 
country. He said that the ban would also limit the police officers from owning 
semi automatic weapons. The issue is violence in our society, not the guns 
involved.  
 
Daniel Mattson, Prescott resident, said the State was working on HB2291, which 
would make it a felony for anyone to attempt to enforce federal restrictions on 
assault weapons. He mentioned that Ruger was in the City and helped support 
the economy.  What would happen if they left Prescott? 
  
Mike Wilkie, Prescott resident, said he wanted to encourage the Council to pass 
the resolution for gun control.  More people are being killed in our 
neighborhoods, schools and homes. Gun control is only part of the solution. 
Mental health issues, poverty, values in our families, gangs, violent videos and 
other concerns are the causes of violence in our country. He asked the Council 
to set up a forum in our community to discuss violence in our society. He 
believes many people would be interested in discussing this.   
 
Hugh Meyer, Prescott resident, said that in 1908 the first traffic signal was put 
into use; the same year the first Model T was sold. The Second Amendment was 
ratified in 1791 when guns were single shot weapons. He said guns have 
changed since then and so must controls. 
 
Wendy Elgin, Prescott resident, said the only people who would comply are the 
honest people and the criminals will keep their guns. 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 3 
 

 
  
Norma Meir, Prescott resident, said that banning weapons is one thing we can do 
now. We are not talking about guns; we are talking about semi automatic 
weapons. She called attention to the state law regarding elections.  She said that 
if the Council could consider going against the state law regarding elections, why 
not on an issue such as assault weapons on our streets. She asked Council to 
take a stand and vote with their hearts because they want to protect the citizens 
and visitors of Prescott.  
 
Nelson Stickle, Prescott resident, said that weapons have changed over the 
years and the Second Amendment talks about the militia and that the citizens 
should be armed appropriately. 
 
Bill Mason, Yavapai County, said that Chicago had the toughest written city law 
relating to ban on weapons and they are listed as number one in the use of 
firearms to kill one another. We have problems in this country and they need to 
be addressed at the federal and state level. We have terrible mental health 
issues in the country.  People are getting guns who should not get them.  It is a 
state and federal issue, not City Council. 
 
Gwen Szilagyi, Prescott resident, called attention to a Time magazine issue.  She 
does not have trouble with guns. If people no longer had access to semi 
automatic guns the violence would stop.  The people with mental issues need to 
be identified. She said that policemen have said they do not get enough training 
with automatic weapons, so citizens probably do not either.  
 
Peter Eldridge, Prescott resident, said placing no restrictions on the rights of 
citizens to use weapons primarily designed and intended for hunting, target 
practice and other legitimate recreational activities and the protection of home, 
person and property, makes a lot of sense for him. He does not own a gun. He 
asks if someone would use a gun that shot ten rounds in a few seconds on a 
deer. He said it did not make sense. He has not heard how the police feel about 
this.  
 
Lou Perelle, Prescott resident, addressed his concern about the polarization of 
the country and said that it jeopardizes the way we make decisions. 
 
Dan Peterson, proprietor of Classic Barrel and Gun Works, Prescott, said that he 
has not heard what economic impact this would have on the community. He said 
the banning of the manufacture of the guns would close the Ruger plant down, 
we would lose J and G Sales, Davidson’s and multiple small manufacturing 
shops in town. He said there would be 1,000 jobs lost in the community, using his 
best guess. The gun industry in Prescott is very large for the size of the 
population. 
 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 4 
 

Fred Spears, Prescott resident, reminded the Council of the laws in Chicago and 
said that Prescott should enforce the gun laws that are on the books.    
 
Jane Cheek, Prescott Pastor, asked the Council to consider Prescott’s image as 
Arizona’s Christmas City.  She said that Jesus was a non-violent man.  We all 
recognize there are guns, and guns are around, but an appeal is being made to 
semi automatic weapons, which are different.   
 
Francis Thomas, Prescott resident, found an article in the Courier which reported 
staff are recommending that the Council deny the petition of Ralph Hess.  She is 
perplexed that something of this magnitude be denied, without any input from the 
community.  We live in a recovery community.  She said they are talking about 
one type of gun, not closing down gun stores. She said they are ignoring the 
issue at their own peril and no one would be safe if the issue is not addressed.  
 
Mayor Kuykendall explained that the Council takes an oath to obey the laws of 
the State and the Constitution of the United States, and that is what they are 
doing.   
 
Kathy Swenson, Prescott resident, said Arizona has some of the most lenient 
gun laws in this county.  She said that since the State of Arizona is doing the 
minimum to protect its citizens, it seems the cities should rise to the occasion and 
take over that duty. She said the state did the same thing for SB 1070. Automatic 
weapons have no place in civilized society. She urged Council to approve the 
petition to ban semi automatic weapons. 
 
Tracy (no last name given), Prescott resident, said she is a process server and 
wants to be able to protect herself. 
  
Ginger Cutting, Yavapai County resident, said that she believes in the right to 
bear arms. She said that she would not like to think that the police department 
would not be able to protect themselves. She asked Council to investigate the 
number of recovery houses in the area and not the gun issue.  
  
Katie Parker, Prescott resident, has two sons in the armed services.  Her elderly 
father can only defend and protect himself from an intruder if he has his own gun.    
 
Joanna Hawley, said her son was killed because someone had a gun. She did 
not understand why people want these guns. She reported she has been held up 
five times and talked her way out of it each time.  
 
Michael Heywood, has an office in Prescott, said this is about nomenclature. 
 
Dennis DuVall, Prescott resident, said he does have a problem with the legal 
opinion. He said the people have to demand sensible gun laws. Here we are 
raising our voices to ask our officials to start something at the local level, so we 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 5 
 

can participate in the movement at the national level. By adopting this ordinance, 
the Council can assert their authority. He urged Council to protect the citizens of 
the City and adopt the Ordinance. 
  
Ralph Hess, Prescott resident, said the Newtown tragedy, which followed Aurora 
and Tucson started the request for the ordinance. The ordinance prohibits pistols 
and firearms that have more than ten rounds in a magazine and 5 rounds in a 
rifle. A graph he shared shows semi automatic handguns have caused the most 
violence. One of the quickest and easiest ways is to restrict the types of weapons 
that cause the issues.  The restriction is not unconstitutional.  The City Attorney’s 
opinion is a valid opinion. He called attention to an article in the Courier about the 
Council going into session and discussing whether to join Tucson and Phoenix in 
the lawsuit related to elections.  He asked when did the topic of when to have an 
election become more important than protecting the citizens of Prescott.  
 
Councilman Kuknyo understands it is a state and federal issue. He read his 
notes calling attention to the fact that millions hold the Second Amendment dear 
and own guns but have not killed anyone. A gun is a tool allowing him to protect 
his family. An armed populace is to keep freedom.  He provided history why this 
is not right and said that firearms bring equality to those weak in body but strong 
in belief and courage to protect ones liberty. He said parents should teach their 
children about guns and that rights come with responsibilities. The problem is not 
guns but the society that does not acknowledged mental illness. The petition 
addresses the symptoms and not the illness. 
   
Councilman Arnold addressed a few issues form his prospective. His brother 
took his own life with a gun. He said that to draw a correlation between their 
Executive Session addressing terms and consolidated elections to gun control in 
the City of Prescott is inappropriate. He said the State put a law in place that 
violates our Charter. In this situation, the State has a law on the books that he 
took an oath to uphold. He does not believe we would be successful in 
challenging the law.  Guns are not what kill people.  It is the person who pulls the 
trigger. It is not the solution to take away guns, but how we address the ones at 
risk.  
 
Councilman Lamerson agreed with Councilman Arnold’s comments. He supports 
the citizens to protect themselves. 
 
Councilman Scamardo agrees with other Councilmen who have spoken. He said 
the Second Amendment is designed to protect each of us from the tyranny of 
governments and the citizens have a right to own and bear arms.  
 
Councilman Carlow said he agrees with the comments and will not support the 
ordinance. 
 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 6 
 

Councilman Blair said he supports Councilman Kuknyo’s comments and will not 
support the ordinance. 
 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO DENY THE PETITION OF RALPH 
HESS; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN SCAMARDO; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
B. Public Hearing and consideration of a liquor license application from Clare 

Hollie Abel, applicant for DG Retail, LLC for a Series 10 Beer & Wine 
Store, license, for Dollar General Store #13047 located at 3150 Willow 
Creek Road. 

 
Clare Abel, representing the applicant, was available for questions. 

 
COUNCILMAN KUKNYO MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BLAIR; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 

COUNCILMAN  KUKNYO MOVED TO APPROVE THE LIQUOR LICENSE 
APPLICATION NO.10133244, FOR A SERIES 10, BEER & WINE STORE, 
LICENSE, FOR DOLLAR GENERAL STORE #13047 LOCATED 3150 WILLOW 
CREEK ROAD; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN CARLOW; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
C. Public Hearing and consideration of a liquor license application from 

James Ray Wilson III, applicant for WNF, Inc., for a Series 12 Restaurant, 
license, for Tastebuds Pizza located at 334 South Montezuma. 

 
Stephen Johnson co-owner was available for questions. 

 
COUNCILMAN KUKNYO MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 

COUNCILMAN KUKNYO MOVED TO APPROVE THE LIQUOR LICENSE 
APPLICATION NO. 12133543, FOR A SERIES 12, RESTAURANT, LICENSE, 
FOR TASTEBUDS PIZZA LOCATED AT 334 SOUTH MONTEZUMA; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 4160-1321 authorizing the City Clerk to enter 

into agreements as required for the 2013 Primary, General, and Special 
Elections. 
 

COUNCILMAN ARNOLD MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4160-1321; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN SCAMARDO; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
E. CC12-003, Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Old Firehouse Plaza, located 

at 220 W Goodwin Street. 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 7 
 

George Worley, Planning Manager, presented.  Staff did a very thorough review 
of the signs and made a proposal to change the square feet. The request was for 
a total of 412 square feet and 25 separate signs surrounding the property. He 
noted that they had a public entrance on all four sides of the building and a 
courtyard in the middle. The Planning and Zoning Commission proposed a 
compromise to approve the sign plan of 25 signs, but reduce the square footage 
to 314. The applicant and property owner, Linda Forbes, is here to answer any 
questions. 
 
Councilman Lamerson questioned if the proposal of 412 square feet created a 
health or safety issue.  He does not understand if there is no issue, why the city 
even asked them to reduce it. Mr. Worley said the focus was about how effective 
the signs are.   
 
Councilman Arnold questioned signs around the elevator tower and if the existing 
signage was being considered part of the total package.  Mr. Worley said yes.  
 
Councilman Kuknyo supported the recommendation and said the property 
deserved an exception.  
 
Councilman Scamardo said if this was under one roof they would not be having 
this conversation. He supports the request.   
 
Councilman Lamerson asked the owner if she was satisfied with the change. He 
agrees that it is a unique property. Ms. Forbes said she would rather Council 
approve the 412 square feet, as designed by her sign designer. She proposed 
exactly what she felt was needed to give the businesses the exposure they need. 
Every sign was strategically designed. She wanted extra visibility to the plaza 
area. Her property is unique because there are four entrances to the plaza. Gary 
Johnson, sign designer, said there are 21 businesses inside.    
 
Councilman Lamerson said he supports the request for the 412 square feet.  
Unless there is a compelling reason to deny a request related to public safety, he 
supports it.  Councilman Blair said he supports the 412 square feet also. 
 
Mayor Kuykendall said he agreed identification is important and supported the 
412 square feet.  

 
COUNCILMAN SCAMARDO MOVED TO APPROVE CC12-003, 
COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN FOR THE OLD FIREHOUSE PLAZA, WITH 
THE CONDITION THAT SIGNAGE BE LIMITED TO 348 SQUARE FEET OF 
WALL SIGNAGE AND 64 SQUARE FEET OF FREESTANDING SIGNAGE, 
FOR A TOTAL OF 412 SQUARE FEET; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN  
BLAIR; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 8 
 

F. Approval of a professional services agreement with Fann Environmental, 
LLC, for engineering and construction support services for the Chino 
Piping Reconfiguration Project in an amount not to exceed $69,925.00. 

 
Councilman Arnold declared a potential conflict of interest and stepped away 
from the Dais at 4:40 P.M.   
 
Mark Nietupski, Public Works Director, presented. The City of Prescott has six 
water production wells within the Town of Chino Valley.  The intent of the project 
is to completely separate the distribution delivery system, which delivers water 
directly to customers, from the water resource transmission system which feeds 
the distribution lines. This will allow blending of water from the five respective 
wells and create a single sampling point at the Water Production Facility.  This 
will result in three fewer sampling points, which will save the City $12,000.00 the 
first year. He said that it would also facilitate the possible transfer of infrastructure 
in customers of the City’s retail water business within the Town of Chino Valley in 
the future. It will take three months to do the design. He advised Council that the 
construction will cost in the range of $327,000.00.  
 
COUNCILMAN BLAIR MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH FANN ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC FOR ENGINEERING AND 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CHINO PIPING 
RECONFIGURATION PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$69,925.00; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN KUKNYO; PASSED 6-0. 

 
 Councilman Arnold returned to the Dais at 4:46 P.M. 
 

G. Purchase of a 12470V Caterpillar Standby Generator from Empire Power 
Systems for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Expansion Phase I 
Project using National Joint Power Alliance pricing in the amount of 
$555,732.00.   

 
Mark Nietupski, Public Works Director, presented and said the City could save 
$54,000.00 through the separate purchasing of this unit. The procurement is in 
compliance with the state requirements and he anticipates completion of the 
project in the Fall of 2014.  
 
City Manager McConnell said the generator removed from the Sundog facility is 
a 300 kw generator, which is 1/6 the size of the new generator for the airport 
facility. The old generator was put on a trailer and transported to the Chino Valley 
water production facility as a backup generator. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the new generator will run the complete plant.  
Mr. Nietupski said that it will. When it is at 80 percent production it will require 
emergency power.  

 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 9 
 

Councilman Arnold asked if the purchase was in conformance with the City’s 
procurement code. Mr. Nietupski said yes.  

 
COUNCILMAN ARNOLD  MOVED TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF A 
12470V CATERPILLAR STANDBY GENERATOR FROM EMPIRE POWER 
SYSTEMS FOR THE AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
EXPANSION PHASE I PROJECT USING NJPA PRICING IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$555,732.00; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN SCAMARDO;  PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.      

 
H. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4847-1304, authorizing debt issuance through 

the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona (WIFA) for the Zone 
12, Zone 19, and Zone 27 water system reservoir projects, and declaring 
an emergency. 

 
Mark Woodfill, Finance Director, presented. He said that Council asked staff to 
apply to WIFA in September, 2012. In December, WIFA approved the loan of 
$15,921,582.00 and authorized a “forgivable principal” amount of $2,034,200.00, 
which makes it basically a grant to the City.  To enable the loan to be completed 
by January 25, 2013, the ordinance includes an emergency clause. 
 
Councilman Lamerson asked who funds WIFA. Mr. Woodfill said it generally 
comes from EPA grants that WIFA gets for water infrastructure systems 
throughout the State. He noted that there was also some Federal money. 
 
Councilman Arnold asked if the current impact fees and water rates 
accommodate the debt service. Mr. Woodfill said the financing was contemplated 
when they did the rate study a few years ago. However the impact fees are well 
behind the curve due to the State moratorium of three years ago. He said they 
are in the process of updating it and it will be a part of the new study being 
worked on.   
 
Mr. Nietupski said that when the original modeling was done, the modeling 
identified an excess of $350 million of infrastructure associated with water and 
wastewater systems. He does not think they have approached halfway. He said 
they are in the 10 – 15 percent range. 
 
COUNCILMAN   CARLOW MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 4847-1304 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN 
LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
I. Supplemental Benefit Plan for Public Safety Personnel Retirement          

System Employees.  
 

Alison Zelms, Deputy City Manager, reviewed the Supplemental Benefit Plan for 
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Employees, including: 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 10 
 

 

 Legislative History of HB 2643 

 Key Provisions of Legislation 

 Key Provisions of the Supplemental Benefit Policy 

 Eligibility Experience Since August 2, 2012 

 Worker’s Compensation Statistics 

 Options for consideration 
 
The City was required to provide a pilot program for not less than six (6) months, 
which will expire February 2, 2013. The City may, but is not required to, extend 
the plan. She noted that the City created a policy that meets all of the key 
provisions of the plan which only applies to full time public safety personnel.  
 
Councilman Arnold said he appreciates that we have low injuries, but suggests 
we should continue to track them so we can back-up our position in the future.  
Councilman Kuknyo asked if the City would be locked into the benefit for a 
certain period of time if they choose to keep it now. Ms. Zelms said it can only be 
in effect for a maximum of one year.   
 
Dan Bates, City of Prescott Firefighter, asked Ms. Zelms if she came up with an 
annual average cost, when looking at the trend for five years. Ms. Zelms said it 
would depend on the amount of time the employee was out. If five fire employees 
were out for one week, it would be an extra $2,000. If they were out for six 
months, that would be an additional $50,000.00 from what the City would have 
paid under the existing program. 
 
Mr. Bates reported he received an email from Ms. McGirk in the Risk 
Department. She noted that seven firefighters and five police officers were out 
over a three year period which came to an average of 2.33 firefighters per year. 
He said that during that three year period the average time off was 19 days. He 
took an average salary of $60,000.00 at $500.00 per shift. He came up with an 
annual cost of $1,925.00. He said the police department averaged out to 1.66 
officers at 45.6 days which is $7,661.00. 
 
He recognizes that there are other employees in the City who have dangerous 
jobs. The difference is that public safety has to react immediately. It is not fair 
that they share the burden of that responsibility. He recommends extending this 
for the next six months. If the bill is implemented, the employee should take care 
of their own share of the cost.  Our surrounding agencies already have this in 
place. 
 
Councilman Kuknyo said he agreed with a lot of what Mr. Bates said and that it 
should not be confused with the liability and the burden that the City is feeling 
with the pensions. He said public safety cannot control the situations they are in.  
Sometimes risks have to be taken and the past six months have shown that the 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 11 
 

program has not been abused. He said the City could pull the program if the 
employees started to abuse it.  
 
Councilman Blair said he does not support treating one set of employees 
differently than others. He recommends incorporating it into the budget as a 
slush fund in the fire department budget for supplemental benefits. He said that 
the City could not say that the police and fire department employees are more 
important than other City employees.  
 
Councilman Lamerson said that public safety employees are subjected to a 
different level of exposure on a daily basis. He said that he liked the idea of 
having some sort of fund for hazardous situations.  
 
Ms. Zelms said that because Prescott is a self insured city, they will not send a 
claim through an insurance company. In order to avoid trauma, it would 
essentially be the same check, for that period, as an employee on Worker’s 
Compensation.  
 
Councilman Scamardo asked if the checks are equal to their regular pay and 
where the extra out of pocket expense is. Mr. Bates said that without the 
supplemental plan, Workman’s Compensation would only pay the 66 percent. 
Councilman Scamardo asked if the 66 percent was net or gross. Ms. Zelms 
replied that it did not adjust for the change in taxation for a Worker’s 
Compensation check. She said they will take home more because they will be 
taxed less for various programs. 
 
Councilman Carlow asked what happens after February 2nd.  Ms. Zelms said that 
it is up to the City to continue the program or not.  
 
Councilman Blair said that if you are injured on the job, you are never made 
whole with compensation. He said that it is why there are supplemental plans 
with insurance companies; to pick up the difference between the loss and the 
employees regular check. He said that plan should be provided to all employees 
uniformly or the City should figure out a way to have a fund to address injured 
employees. He said the test was done with Public Safety employees, but it was 
important to all employees. It needs to be equal across the board. Mr. Bates said 
he agreed, however, public safety employees do not have the opportunity to 
create safe work places.  

 
J. Legislative Update. 

 
Ms. Zelms noted that this was day nine of the 51st legislative session. She said 
590 bills have been submitted.  

 She said a commercial lease tax bill came up which is trying to limit 
the transaction privilege tax ability of commercial leases from LLC 
to LLC that are affiliated. She said it would be about a $35,000.00 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 12 
 

impact to the City. If an LLC to corporation bill came through, it 
would be closer to $100,000.00 impact annually to the City. She 
said it assumes that a tax license holder is listing themselves as an 
LLC accurately. She recommends that Council sign-in opposed to 
that legislation which will be heard tomorrow.  
 

 Karen Fann introduced alarm regulation legislation which would 
allow the local police department to have access to alarm business 
information for individual subscribers. It would not allow them to 
have key code information, just more information when responding 
to an alarm. She noted that this item has not been calendared at 
this time.  

 

 The Governors State of the State speech talked about funding 
reform for kindergarten through 12th grade and Medicaid expansion 
for the State. She talked about her willingness to discuss the 
implications of the construction sales tax changes. If that legislation 
moves forward it will be difficult to address the budget next year. 
Ms. Zelms reported construction sales tax alone would be 
approximately a $1.5 million impact if it was to be changed in the 
manner that the Transaction Privilege Tax Reform Committee has 
suggested. 

 
Mr. McConnell said Mr. Woodfill will give a mid-year budget review on February 
5, 2013.  There will be a couple of slides for fiscal year 2014. He said there would 
be opportunity to discuss the impacts of the bills. Councilman Scamardo said 
construction has not come back from its 2007 level. He pointed out if he bought 
lumber in Tucson, the sales tax would be paid in Tucson.  
 
REPORTS 
 
A.   Board/Commission liaison reports 
 
Councilman Kuknyo said the Acker Trust Grant applications were out and 
needed to be back in be February 1, 2013 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
Councilman Arnold noted that there is a tentative joint meeting for February 11, 
2013 with the businesses and property owners on Whiskey Row and City staff to 
discuss the Whiskey Off-Road.  There will also be a meeting scheduled near the 
end of February regarding the drug and alcohol rehabilitation facilities. It will be 
an industry led conversation with some City participation.   
 
Councilman Carlow said they were looking for an additional member for the Fire 
Board of Appeals. 
 



Prescott City Council 
Regular Voting Meeting – January 22, 2013        Page 13 
 

Councilman Scamardo reported the General Plan is completed, ready to move to 
public hearings, and then to the Planning and Zoning Commission before going 
to the voters.  
 

III. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting of 
January 22, 2013, adjourned at 5:43 p.m.   

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

___________________________ 
       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
LYNN MULHALL, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on 
the 22nd day of January, 2013. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2013. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL 
 
     _____________________________  

    LYNN MULHALL, City Clerk 
 

 


